
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, November 15, 2016 
A G E N D A               

REGULAR MEETING 
4:00 P.M. 

 
 I. Open Meeting  
   
 II. Roll Call 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes 

A. July 11, 2016 Work Session ................................................................. 1  
B. July 19, 2016 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 2-4 
C. August 2, 2016 Work Session .............................................................. 5 
D. September 20, 2016 Regular Meeting ................................................... 6 
E. October 18, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................... 7-8 

 
 IV. Visitor Comments 
 
 V. Staff Reports 
  A.  Shawn Irvine, Economic Development Director 
 
 VI. Unfinished Business  

A. Historic Preservation Code Update status and process 
B. Newsletter: Concept and committee 
C. HPC members: attendance, new members, orientation, committee 
D. Available resources on website 

 
  VII. New Business 

A.  
 

 VIII. Other Discussion/Information Items 
 

 IX. Adjourn Meeting 
  

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
The Historic Preservation Commission of the City of Independence will hold a Regular Meeting at 4:00 
p.m., Tuesday, November 15, 2016 at Independence Civic Center, 555 S. Main Street, 
Independence, OR 97351. A copy of the meeting agenda follows.  
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made to Karin 
Johnson, MMC, City Recorder, 503.838.1212 / TTY: 800.735.2900 

 



 
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 2, 2016 

 
 

 I. Open Meeting. The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. in the Event Center 
by Chair Michael Cairns. 

   
 
 II. Roll Call. Chair Cairns; Beth Niquette, Curtis Tidmore, Cheryl Gaston, Dawn 

Roden, John Young. Others present: Council Liaison Tom Takacs, Econ. Devel. 
Dir. Staff present: Shawn Irvine, Economic Development Director; City Recorder 
Karin Johnson. 

 
 
 
 III. WORK SESSION 

A. Historic Preservation Code update 

1. Introduction and Brief Review of the Scope of Services 

2. Review and Discussion of the Guideline Principles document 

3. Review and Discussion of the Elements Design Guideline [tabular] 

4. Brief Summary of the Background and Objectives [Recap as this was 
covered in the prior meeting] 

5. Discussion of Other Issues and Next Steps 

 
 

 IV. Adjourn Meeting. Chair Cairns declared the meeting adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 
  

Page 1



 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, July 19, 2016 
 

 I. Open Meeting. The meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. 
   
 II. Roll Call. Chair Cairns; Beth Niquette, Curtis Tidmore, Cheryl Gaston, 

Dawn Roden, John Young. 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes. The minutes of June 21, 2016 were submitted in the 

agenda packet.  
 
ACTION: 
Gaston moved to approve the minutes of June 21, 2016 as submitted; Young 
seconded. Motion passed 6-0-0: 
 
 AYES:  Cairns, Niquette, Tidmore, Gaston, Roden, Young 
 NAYS: None 
 ABSTENTIONS: None 
 
 IV. Visitor Comments. None. 
 
 V. Staff Reports. None.  
 
 VI. Unfinished Business  

A. Continued: Historic Grant Application / 558 C Street 
 
Staff report presented by Irvine, who noted this is a continuation from the 6/21/16 
meeting. This is a historic grant application, combined with a Certificate of 
Appropriateness application. Work is to include dry rot repair, maintenance; 
painting of the entire house will also be done.  Staff recommend approval, as set 
for the in the staff report. He noted this will also have to be approved by SHPO 
after our approval.  
 
Cairns would like to see same materials, same style. Consensus. Repairs only in 
sections as needed; not to replace entire features, just the damaged portions. 
Discussion of replacing like for like.  
 
ACTION: 
Gaston moved to approve as recommended by staff and with further conditions to 
replace materials with like materials in same style, and where possible to utilize 
Dutchman style repairs; Roden seconded. Motion passed 6-0-0: 
 
 AYES:  Cairns, Niquette, Tidmore, Gaston, Roden, Young 
 NAYS: None 
 ABSTENTIONS: None 
  

Page 2



 

VII.New Business 
A. Façade Grant: 158 S. 2nd Street. Irvine reported the applicants are 

requesting approval of replacement of front doors, and noted the present doors are 
not original to the house. Applicant seeks to replace with steel doors, retrofitting 
the doors to mimic the diamond patterning featured on the home’s existing  original 
windows. 
 
Gaston stated she contacted SHPO with questions about doors; she stated that will 
not approve replacement with a steel door. Tidmore agreed; he stated he did some 
research into looking for wood doors. Discussion. Gaston reported this probably is 
not eligible for grant funds by using a steel door. Further discussion.  Tidmore 
suggested letting Irvine know later what would be approved, such as a solid wood 
door. Further discussion. Consensus solid wood door, with half light or 4 or 6 panel 
door. Discussion of hardware. Consensus they are okay with hardware as proposed. 
Commission considered a special meeting to allow applicant enough time to 
complete purchase prior to end of August (end of grant period). Discussion that the 
diamond pattern is speculative, and is probably not appropriate to mimic it. 
 
ACTION: 
Roden moved to deny the request as steel doors are not appropriate to the 
structure; Gaston seconded. Motion passed 6-0-0: 
 
 AYES:  Cairns, Niquette, Tidmore, Gaston, Roden, Young 
 NAYS: None 
 ABSTENTIONS: None 
 
Consensus that staff is to encourage applicant to reapply. Discussion of a special 
meeting; consensus that they are open to a special meeting if the applicant would 
like to reapply. 
 
 
VI.Unfinished Business (cont) 

B. Discussion of 284 C Street – non-contributing property (grant).  It was 
found that due to the landscaping so overgrown, one couldn’t see details, also that 
there are asbestos shingles. City can ask to have the listing changed if the shingles 
are gone. Also some of the proposed work was speculative. He will bring 
information to next commission meeting about making a contributing change. 

C. Historic Preservation Code. Robert Dortignacq is working on draft 
language to pursue discussion from the last meeting. How to handle work that 
doesn’t require permits is being looked at. Discussion.  
 
Tidmore suggested getting information out in utility bills; Irvine said help to write 
article/flyer would be appreciated. Johnson will look into possibility of recording 
information on historic properties. 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



 

Irvine asked commissioners for thoughts/comments on Dortignacq’s memos. 
 
Cairns noted that his house is historic, but is not in the district. He would like it to 
get recognized as such; there is no process to do so. Irvine suggested  perhaps a 
voluntary sign up program. 
 
Discussion of the possibility of future intensive level surveys, historic resources 
outside district, possible reduction of the size of the district. 
 
Next steps: Dortignacq is working on the draft code; he will bring it to 
commissioners for review and comments; it will be based on the work done so far 
by the commission. Funds must be spent by the end of August, with final work 
complete by end of September. Discussion of meeting. Johnson will do a Doodle Poll 
for availability. 

 
 VIII. Other Discussion/Information Items. None. 

 
 IX. Adjourn Meeting. There being no further business to come before the 
commission, Cairns declared meeting closed. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:58 p.m. 
 

Page 4



 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, August 2, 2016 
Special Meeting: Work Session 

 
 
 

 I. Open Meeting. The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. 
   
 II. Commissioners Present: Curtis Tidmore; Cheryl Gaston; Michael Cairns; 

John Young. 
 
  Others Present: Shawn Irvine, Karin Johnson, Robert Dortignaco 
 
 III. Brief discussion of next agenda: newsletter ideas. 
 
 IV.  Review of code update. This will establish tools for staff, the commission 

and residents that are in accord with Secretary of Interior standards. 
 
  Use elements & principles as a guide/supplement to the city code; 

discussion.  
 
  Discussion of code v. guidelines. 
 
  Goal is new code; Michael thought we were 99% there; discussion. 
 
  After review, it was suggested that commissioners send any additional 

comments to Shawn no later than 1 week from today. 
 
  Additional discussion: 

1. Items to send to SHPO (updated survey & Pink House relocation) 
2. Discussion of a newsletter to inform homeowners in District. 
3. Discussion of enforcement. Need for education. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 5:13 p.m. 
 

Page 5



 
 
 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, September 20, 2016 
 
 

 I. Open Meeting. 
   
 II. Roll Call. Members present: Michael Cairns, Curtis Tidmore 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes: minutes of July 19, 2016 were postponed. 
 
 IV. Visitor Comments. None. 
 
 V. Staff Reports. None 
 
 VI. Unfinished Business. Discussion of the code update, enforcement versus 

education.  
 
  VII. New Business. None 

 
 VIII. Other Discussion/Information Items. None 

 
 IX. Adjourn Meeting. The meeting was declared adjourned 
  

Page 6



 

Page 1 of 2 / Historic Preservation Commission Minutes / 10-18-16 
 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

TUESDAY, October 18, 2016 
 
 

 I. Open Meeting. The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm by Chair 
Michael Cairns. 

   
 II. Roll Call. Commissioners Present: Michael Cairns, Beth Niquette, Cheryl 

Gaston, John Young 
 
  Others Present: Shawn Irvine, Karin Johnson, Tom Takacs 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes. Postponed to next meeting. 
 
 IV. Visitor Comments. 
 
 V. Staff Reports 
  A.  Shawn Irvine, Economic Development Director: 
   1. Downtown: there will be a new tenant in the Opera House – a 

Hawaiian/Filipino fusion restaurant; they are hoping for a 
December opening. 

   2. There is another possible tenant in the Opera House. 
   3. Cooper Building is close to signing an agreement for the restaurant 

space, which is the final available space in the building. 
   4. Taylor’s renovation is moving along; steel columns are in. It took a 

while to get the floor figured out. 
  B. Façade grant for Taylor’s. They are keeping options open for 2 tenants; 

asking Commission that if one is filled, will qualify or do both spaces 
need to be filled. Discussion; consensus that one tenant fulfills the 
requirement. Cairns noted it is still a long way from someone moving 
in.  

  C.  Behind Moothart’s Market is a townhome project. It is outside the 
historic district; they will be doing some work now, with most work in 
the spring. The project will consist of townhomes and 2 small 
retail/commercial spaces. 

  D.  Received an email from Ian Johnson of SHPO about the survey 
update. He is wondering if HPC is looking at amending the nomination 
versus a  multiple property listing nomination. Cairns would like to see 
properties qualified for status. Niquette asked if properties over 50 
years old are under HPC purview, regardless if in district; Irvine stated 
it depends if they are contributing or non-contributing.  Demolitions of 
structures 75 and older in town or 50 years in the district comes to the 
commission.  He will need to get a handle on the process, and will 
bring it back to commission for any needed action. Cairns reported 
that when the district was first formed, we had a series of surveys. 
Owners were notified of inclusion; there was an opt out process. Irvine 

Page 7



 

Page 2 of 2 / Historic Preservation Commission Minutes / 10-18-16 
 

will have staff assistant visit with Mr. Johnson, perhaps he could come 
to our next meeting.  

 
 VI. Unfinished Business  

A. Historic Preservation Code Update status and process. Irvine reported 
we are nearly finished with language. Finished  updating the model 
code, and will bring back for HPC review, then go to legal; it will then 
run by the HPC one final time. Discussion of process and code 
changes. Cairns would like to see this as soon as possible; Irvine will 
send it to the attorney at same time as the HPC. 

B. Newsletter: concept and committee. Postpone discussion to next 
month. Beth would like to be a part of this.  

C. Photo contest results. Only one vote received. 
 

  VII. New Business 
A. Protocol for agenda preparation. Cairns asked to see a formal process; 

most organizations have the chair work w/staff to develop an agenda.  
He would like more advance notice.  Discussion.  Next meeting is 
11/15; Johnson would like items no later than 8:00 am the Thursday 
prior to a  meeting. 

B. HPC members:  
1. Attendance. Discussion of Albrich attendance, that she is 

disqualified from service on commission. Cairns reported we 
have an interested applicant.  Cairns reported he will be 
dropping off the commission at end of year; Young stated he will 
be moving out of town this summer, and may no longer qualify 
for membership. 

2. Vice-Chair. Cairns recalls that Gaston was elected vice-chair.  
3. New members. Cairns noted that it would be helpful to talk with 

people that would be interested in serving; would also like to 
see an item in the city newsletter. 

4. Orientation. Cairns stated that new members often come on the 
commission and don’t know the history, what their job is. Would 
like to see a process or packet.  

5. Committee. Cairns noted that Curtis had suggested forming a 
committee to work on this; will discuss next month. 

C. Available resources on website. Cairns will find various contractors, 
send to Karin to put on website. Discussion of having these resources 
on website. Karin to call CIS to ensure okay (with disclaimer).  

 
 VIII. Other Discussion/Information Items 

A. Irvine noted that SHPO has several webinars, etc; maybe the 
Commission could do these at ‘light’ meetings? Consensus. 
 

 IX. Adjourn Meeting. The meeting was declared adjourned at 4:40 pm by 
Chair Michael Cairns.  

  

Page 8


	Agenda.HPC.11-15-16
	Minutes.HPC.07-11-16.WkSn
	Minutes.HPC.07-19-16.DRAFT
	Minutes.HPC.08-02-16.DRAFT
	Minutes.HPC.09-20-16.DRAFT
	Minutes.HPC.10-18-16.DRAFT



